

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

~~text~~ shows text that was in HB0478 but was deleted in HB0478S01.

text shows text that was not in HB0478 but was inserted into HB0478S01.

DISCLAIMER: This document is provided to assist you in your comparison of the two bills. Sometimes this automated comparison will NOT be completely accurate. Therefore, you need to read the actual bills. This automatically generated document could contain inaccuracies caused by: limitations of the compare program; bad input data; or other causes.

Representative Bradley G. Last proposes the following substitute bill:

MINIMUM BASIC TAX RATE REDUCTION

2022 GENERAL SESSION

STATE OF UTAH

Chief Sponsor: Bradley G. Last

Senate Sponsor: _____

LONG TITLE

General Description:

This bill amends provisions related to the basic tax rate to fund public education.

Highlighted Provisions:

This bill:

- ▶ amends the years in which a freeze is in effect on the minimum basic tax rate;
- ▶ repeals the weighted pupil unit (WPU) value rate and the equity pupil unit rate;
- ▶ repeals a study and reporting requirement related to the WPU value rate; and
- ▶ makes technical and conforming changes.

Money Appropriated in this Bill:

None

Other Special Clauses:

This bill provides retrospective operation.

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

Utah Code Sections Affected:

AMENDS:

- 11-13-302, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapters 415 and 456
- 11-13-310, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapters 415 and 456
- 53E-1-202, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2021, Chapters 251 and 319
- 53F-2-205, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2021, Chapter 382
- 53F-2-301, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2021, Chapter 319
- 53F-2-515, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapter 456 and renumbered and amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapter 2
- 53F-9-302, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2019, Chapter 186
- 53F-9-305, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2019, Chapter 186
- 53F-9-306, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2019, Chapter 186
- 53G-3-304, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapters 281, 456 and renumbered and amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapter 3
- 59-2-919.1, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2020, Chapter 78
- 59-2-926, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapters 415 and 456
- 63I-2-211, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2018, Chapters 337 and 456
- 63I-2-253, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2021, First Special Session, Chapter 14
- 63I-2-259, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2021, Chapter 370

REPEALS:

- 53F-2-301.5, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2021, Chapter 6

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the state of Utah:

Section 1. Section **11-13-302** is amended to read:

11-13-302. Payment of fee in lieu of ad valorem property tax by certain energy suppliers -- Method of calculating -- Collection -- Extent of tax lien.

(1) (a) Each project entity created under this chapter that owns a project and that sells any capacity, service, or other benefit from it to an energy supplier or suppliers whose tangible property is not exempted by Utah Constitution Article XIII, Section 3, from the payment of ad valorem property tax, shall pay an annual fee in lieu of ad valorem property tax as provided in this section to each taxing jurisdiction within which the project or any part of it is located.

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

(b) For purposes of this section, "annual fee" means the annual fee described in Subsection (1)(a) that is in lieu of ad valorem property tax.

(c) The requirement to pay an annual fee shall commence:

(i) with respect to each taxing jurisdiction that is a candidate receiving the benefit of impact alleviation payments under contracts or determination orders provided for in Sections 11-13-305 and 11-13-306, with the fiscal year of the candidate following the fiscal year of the candidate in which the date of commercial operation of the last generating unit, other than any generating unit providing additional project capacity, of the project occurs, or, in the case of any facilities providing additional project capacity, with the fiscal year of the candidate following the fiscal year of the candidate in which the date of commercial operation of the generating unit providing the additional project capacity occurs; and

(ii) with respect to any taxing jurisdiction other than a taxing jurisdiction described in Subsection (1)(c)(i), with the fiscal year of the taxing jurisdiction in which construction of the project commences, or, in the case of facilities providing additional project capacity, with the fiscal year of the taxing jurisdiction in which construction of those facilities commences.

(d) The requirement to pay an annual fee shall continue for the period of the useful life of the project or facilities.

(2) (a) The annual fees due a school district shall be as provided in Subsection (2)(b) because the ad valorem property tax imposed by a school district and authorized by the Legislature represents both:

(i) a levy mandated by the state for the state minimum school program under Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable~~]; and

(ii) local levies for capital outlay and other purposes under Sections 53F-8-303, 53F-8-301, and 53F-8-302.

(b) The annual fees due a school district shall be as follows:

(i) the project entity shall pay to the school district an annual fee for the state minimum school program at the rate imposed by the school district and authorized by the Legislature under Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable~~]; and

(ii) for all other local property tax levies authorized to be imposed by a school district, the project entity shall pay to the school district either:

(A) an annual fee; or

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

(B) impact alleviation payments under contracts or determination orders provided for in Sections 11-13-305 and 11-13-306.

(3) (a) An annual fee due a taxing jurisdiction for a particular year shall be calculated by multiplying the tax rate or rates of the jurisdiction for that year by the product obtained by multiplying the fee base or value determined in accordance with Subsection (4) for that year of the portion of the project located within the jurisdiction by the percentage of the project which is used to produce the capacity, service, or other benefit sold to the energy supplier or suppliers.

(b) As used in this section, "tax rate," when applied in respect to a school district, includes any assessment to be made by the school district under Subsection (2) or Section 63M-5-302.

(c) There is to be credited against the annual fee due a taxing jurisdiction for each year, an amount equal to the debt service, if any, payable in that year by the project entity on bonds, the proceeds of which were used to provide public facilities and services for impact alleviation in the taxing jurisdiction in accordance with Sections 11-13-305 and 11-13-306.

(d) The tax rate for the taxing jurisdiction for that year shall be computed so as to:

(i) take into account the fee base or value of the percentage of the project located within the taxing jurisdiction determined in accordance with Subsection (4) used to produce the capacity, service, or other benefit sold to the supplier or suppliers; and

(ii) reflect any credit to be given in that year.

(4) (a) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the annual fees required by this section shall be paid, collected, and distributed to the taxing jurisdiction as if:

(i) the annual fees were ad valorem property taxes; and

(ii) the project were assessed at the same rate and upon the same measure of value as taxable property in the state.

(b) (i) Notwithstanding Subsection (4)(a), for purposes of an annual fee required by this section, the fee base of a project may be determined in accordance with an agreement among:

(A) the project entity; and

(B) any county that:

(I) is due an annual fee from the project entity; and

(II) agrees to have the fee base of the project determined in accordance with the

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

agreement described in this Subsection (4).

(ii) The agreement described in Subsection (4)(b)(i):

(A) shall specify each year for which the fee base determined by the agreement shall be used for purposes of an annual fee; and

(B) may not modify any provision of this chapter except the method by which the fee base of a project is determined for purposes of an annual fee.

(iii) For purposes of an annual fee imposed by a taxing jurisdiction within a county described in Subsection (4)(b)(i)(B), the fee base determined by the agreement described in Subsection (4)(b)(i) shall be used for purposes of an annual fee imposed by that taxing jurisdiction.

(iv) (A) If there is not agreement as to the fee base of a portion of a project for any year, for purposes of an annual fee, the State Tax Commission shall determine the value of that portion of the project for which there is not an agreement:

(I) for that year; and

(II) using the same measure of value as is used for taxable property in the state.

(B) The valuation required by Subsection (4)(b)(iv)(A) shall be made by the State Tax Commission in accordance with rules made by the State Tax Commission.

(c) Payments of the annual fees shall be made from:

(i) the proceeds of bonds issued for the project; and

(ii) revenues derived by the project entity from the project.

(d) (i) The contracts of the project entity with the purchasers of the capacity, service, or other benefits of the project whose tangible property is not exempted by Utah Constitution Article XIII, Section 3, from the payment of ad valorem property tax shall require each purchaser, whether or not located in the state, to pay, to the extent not otherwise provided for, its share, determined in accordance with the terms of the contract, of these fees.

(ii) It is the responsibility of the project entity to enforce the obligations of the purchasers.

(5) (a) The responsibility of the project entity to make payment of the annual fees is limited to the extent that there is legally available to the project entity, from bond proceeds or revenues, money to make these payments, and the obligation to make payments of the annual fees is not otherwise a general obligation or liability of the project entity.

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

(b) No tax lien may attach upon any property or money of the project entity by virtue of any failure to pay all or any part of an annual fee.

(c) The project entity or any purchaser may contest the validity of an annual fee to the same extent as if the payment was a payment of the ad valorem property tax itself.

(d) The payments of an annual fee shall be reduced to the extent that any contest is successful.

(6) (a) The annual fee described in Subsection (1):

(i) shall be paid by a public agency that:

(A) is not a project entity; and

(B) owns an interest in a facility providing additional project capacity if the interest is otherwise exempt from taxation pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article XIII, Section 3; and

(ii) for a public agency described in Subsection (6)(a)(i), shall be calculated in accordance with Subsection (6)(b).

(b) The annual fee required under Subsection (6)(a) shall be an amount equal to the tax rate or rates of the applicable taxing jurisdiction multiplied by the product of the following:

(i) the fee base or value of the facility providing additional project capacity located within the jurisdiction;

(ii) the percentage of the ownership interest of the public agency in the facility; and

(iii) the portion, expressed as a percentage, of the public agency's ownership interest that is attributable to the capacity, service, or other benefit from the facility that is sold by the public agency to an energy supplier or suppliers whose tangible property is not exempted by Utah Constitution, Article XIII, Section 3, from the payment of ad valorem property tax.

(c) A public agency paying the annual fee pursuant to Subsection (6)(a) shall have the obligations, credits, rights, and protections set forth in Subsections (1) through (5) with respect to its ownership interest as though it were a project entity.

Section 2. Section **11-13-310** is amended to read:

11-13-310. Termination of impact alleviation contract.

(1) If the project or any part of it or the facilities providing additional project capacity or any part of them, or the output from the project or facilities providing additional project capacity become subject, in addition to the requirements of Section 11-13-302, to ad valorem property taxation or other payments in lieu of ad valorem property taxation, or other form of

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

tax equivalent payments to any candidate which is a party to an impact alleviation contract with respect to the project or facilities providing additional project capacity or is receiving impact alleviation payments or means with respect to the project or facilities providing additional project capacity pursuant to a determination by the board, then the impact alleviation contract or the requirement to make impact alleviation payments or provide means therefor pursuant to the determination, as the case may be, shall, at the election of the candidate, terminate.

(2) In any event, each impact alleviation contract or determination order shall terminate upon the project, or, in the case of facilities providing additional project capacity, those facilities becoming subject to the provisions of Section 11-13-302, except that no impact alleviation contract or agreement entered by a school district shall terminate because of in lieu ad valorem property tax fees levied under Subsection 11-13-302(2)(b)(i) or because of ad valorem property taxes levied under Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable,~~] for the state minimum school program.

(3) In addition, if the construction of the project, or, in the case of facilities providing additional project capacity, of those facilities, is permanently terminated for any reason, each impact alleviation contract and determination order, and the payments and means required thereunder, shall terminate.

(4) No termination of an impact alleviation contract or determination order may terminate or reduce any liability previously incurred pursuant to the contract or determination order by the candidate beneficiary under it.

(5) If the provisions of Section 11-13-302, or its successor, are held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, and no ad valorem taxes or other form of tax equivalent payments are payable, the remaining provisions of this chapter shall continue in operation without regard to the commencement of commercial operation of the last generating unit of that project or of facilities providing additional project capacity.

Section 3. Section **53E-1-202** is amended to read:

53E-1-202. Reports to and action required of the Public Education

Appropriations Subcommittee.

(1) In accordance with applicable provisions and Section 68-3-14, the following recurring reports are due to the Public Education Appropriations Subcommittee:

(a) the State Superintendent's Annual Report by the state board described in Section

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

53E-1-203;

(b) the report described in Section 53E-10-703 by the Utah Leading through Effective, Actionable, and Dynamic Education director on research and other activities; and

(c) the report by the STEM Action Center Board described in Section 9-22-109, including the information described in Section 9-22-113 on the status of the computer science initiative.

(2) The one-time report by the state board regarding cost centers and implementing activity based costing is due to the Public Education Appropriations Subcommittee in accordance with Section 53E-3-520.

(3) In accordance with applicable provisions, the Public Education Appropriations Subcommittee shall complete [~~the following: (a) the review described in Section 53E-2-301 of the WPU value rate; and (b)~~], if required, the study described in Section 53F-4-304 of scholarship payments.

Section 4. Section **53F-2-205** is amended to read:

53F-2-205. Powers and duties of state board to adjust Minimum School Program allocations -- Use of remaining funds at the end of a fiscal year.

(1) As used in this section:

(a) "ESEA" means the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, 20 U.S.C. Sec. 6301 et seq.

(b) "Program" means a program or allocation funded by a line item appropriation or other appropriation designated as:

- (i) Basic Program;
- (ii) Related to Basic Programs;
- (iii) Voted and Board Levy Programs; or
- (iv) Minimum School Program.

(2) Except as provided in Subsection (3) or (5), if the number of weighted pupil units in a program is underestimated, the state board shall reduce the value of the weighted pupil unit in that program so that the total amount paid for the program does not exceed the amount appropriated for the program.

(3) If the number of weighted pupil units in a program is overestimated, the state board shall spend excess money appropriated for the following purposes giving priority to the

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

purpose described in Subsection (3)(a):

(a) to support the value of the weighted pupil unit in a program within the basic state-supported school program in which the number of weighted pupil units is underestimated;

(b) to support the state guaranteed local levy increments as defined in Section 53F-2-601, if:

(i) local contributions to the voted local levy program or board local levy program are overestimated; or

(ii) the number of weighted pupil units within school districts qualifying for a guarantee is underestimated;

(c) to support the state supplement to local property taxes allocated to charter schools, if the state supplement is less than the amount prescribed by Section 53F-2-704;

(d) to fund the cost of the salary supplements described in Section 53F-2-504; or

(e) to support a school district with a loss in student enrollment as provided in Section 53F-2-207.

(4) If local contributions from the minimum basic tax rate imposed under Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable,~~] are overestimated, the state board shall reduce the value of the weighted pupil unit for all programs within the basic state-supported school program so the total state contribution to the basic state-supported school program does not exceed the amount of state funds appropriated.

(5) If local contributions from the minimum basic tax rate imposed under Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable,~~] are underestimated, the state board shall:

(a) spend the excess local contributions for the purposes specified in Subsection (3), giving priority to supporting the value of the weighted pupil unit in programs within the basic state-supported school program in which the number of weighted pupil units is underestimated; and

(b) reduce the state contribution to the basic state-supported school program so the total cost of the basic state-supported school program does not exceed the total state and local funds appropriated to the basic state-supported school program plus the local contributions necessary to support the value of the weighted pupil unit in programs within the basic state-supported school program in which the number of weighted pupil units is underestimated.

(6) Except as provided in Subsection (3) or (5), the state board shall reduce the state

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

guarantee per weighted pupil unit provided under the local levy state guarantee program described in Section 53F-2-601, if:

(a) local contributions to the voted local levy program or board local levy program are overestimated; or

(b) the number of weighted pupil units within school districts qualifying for a guarantee is underestimated.

(7) Money appropriated to the state board is nonlapsing, including appropriations to the Minimum School Program and all agencies, line items, and programs under the jurisdiction of the state board.

(8) The state board shall report actions taken by the state board under this section to the Office of the Legislative Fiscal Analyst and the Governor's Office of Planning and Budget.

Section 5. Section **53F-2-301** is amended to read:

53F-2-301. Minimum basic tax rate for a fiscal year that begins after July 1, 2021.

(1) The provisions of this section are not in effect for a fiscal year that begins on July 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, or 2021~~[, or 2022]~~.

(2) As used in this section:

(a) "Basic levy increment rate" means a tax rate that will generate an amount of revenue equal to \$75,000,000.

~~[(b) "Combined basic rate" means a rate that is the sum of:]~~

~~[(i) the minimum basic tax rate; and]~~

~~[(ii) the WPU value rate.]~~

~~[(c)]~~ (b) "Commission" means the State Tax Commission.

~~[(d)]~~ ~~[(c)]~~ "Equity pupil tax rate" means the tax rate that ~~[(d)]~~ will generate an amount of revenue equal to the amount generated by the equity pupil tax rate as defined in Section 53F-2-301.5 in the fiscal year that begins July 1, 2022. ~~[(e)]~~ ~~[(c)]~~ { is: }

~~[(e)]~~ ~~[(c)]~~ { (i) calculated by subtracting the minimum basic tax rate from the rate floor; or

~~[(e)]~~ ~~[(c)]~~ { (ii) zero, if the rate calculated in accordance with Subsection (2)(c)(i) is zero or less.

~~[(e)]~~ ~~[(d)]~~ ~~[(c)]~~ "Minimum basic local amount" means an amount that is:

(i) equal to the sum of:

(A) the school districts' contribution to the basic school program the previous fiscal year;

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

(B) the amount generated by the basic levy increment rate; and

~~[(C) the amount generated by the equity pupil tax rate; and]~~

~~[(D)]~~ (C) the eligible new growth, as defined in Section 59-2-924 and rules of the State Tax Commission multiplied by the minimum basic rate; and

(ii) set annually by the Legislature in Subsection (3)(a).

~~[(f)]~~ (f) "Minimum basic tax rate" means a tax rate certified by the commission that will generate an amount of revenue equal to the minimum basic local amount described in Subsection (3)(a).

~~[(g) "Weighted pupil unit value" or "WPU value" means the amount established each year in the enacted public education budget that is multiplied by the number of weighted pupil units to yield the funding level for the basic school program.]~~

~~[(h) "WPU value amount" means an amount:]~~

~~[(i) that is equal to the product of:]~~

~~[(A) the WPU value increase limit; and]~~

~~[(B) the percentage share of local revenue to the cost of the basic school program in the immediately preceding fiscal year; and]~~

~~[(ii) set annually by the Legislature in Subsection (4)(a).]~~

~~[(i) "WPU value increase limit" means the lesser of:]~~

~~[(i) the total cost to the basic school program to increase the WPU value over the WPU value in the prior fiscal year; or]~~

~~[(ii) the total cost to the basic school program to increase the WPU value by 4% over the WPU value in the prior fiscal year.]~~

~~[(j) "WPU value rate" means a tax rate certified by the commission that will generate an amount of revenue equal to the WPU value amount described in Subsection (4)(a).]~~

(3) (a) The minimum basic local amount for the fiscal year that begins on July 1, 2018, is \$408,073,800 in revenue statewide.

(b) The preliminary estimate of the minimum basic tax rate for a fiscal year that begins on July 1, 2018, is .001498.

~~[(4)(a) The WPU value amount for the fiscal year that begins on July 1, 2018, is \$18,650,000 in revenue statewide.]~~

~~[(b) The preliminary estimate of the WPU value rate for the fiscal year that begins on~~

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

July 1, 2018, is ~~.000069.~~]

~~[(5)] (4)~~ (a) On or before June 22, the commission shall certify ~~[for the year: (i)]~~ the minimum basic tax rate ~~[; and]~~ for the year.

~~[(ii) the WPU value rate.]~~

(b) The estimate of the minimum basic tax rate provided in Subsection (3)(b) ~~[and the estimate of the WPU value rate provided in Subsection (4)(b) are]~~ is based on a forecast for property values for the next calendar year.

(c) The certified minimum basic tax rate described in Subsection ~~[(5)(a)(i) and the certified WPU value rate described in Subsection (5)(a)(ii) are]~~ (4)(a) is based on property values as of January 1 of the current calendar year, except personal property, which is based on values from the previous calendar year.

~~[(6)] (5)~~ (a) To qualify for receipt of the state contribution toward the basic school program and as a school district's contribution toward the cost of the basic school program for the school district, each local school board shall impose the ~~[combined]~~ minimum basic tax rate.

(b) (i) The state is not subject to the notice requirements of Section 59-2-926 before imposing the tax rates described in this Subsection ~~[(6)] (5).~~

(ii) ~~[(A) Except as provided in Subsection (6)(b)(ii)(B), the]~~ The state is subject to the notice requirements of Section 59-2-926 if the state authorizes a tax rate that exceeds the tax rates described in this Subsection ~~[(6)] (5).~~

~~[(B) For a calendar year that begins on January 1, 2018, the state is not subject to the notice and public hearing requirements of Section 59-2-926 if the state authorizes a combined basic rate that exceeds the tax rates authorized in this section.]~~

~~[(7)] (6)~~ (a) The state shall contribute to each school district toward the cost of the basic school program in the school district an amount of money that is the difference between the cost of the school district's basic school program and the sum of revenue generated by the school district by the following:

(i) the ~~[combined]~~ minimum basic tax rate; and

(ii) the basic levy increment rate ~~[; and]~~ .

~~[(iii) the equity pupil tax rate.]~~

(b) (i) If the difference described in Subsection ~~[(7)] (6)~~(a) equals or exceeds the cost

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

of the basic school program in a school district, no state contribution shall be made to the basic school program for the school district.

(ii) The proceeds of the difference described in Subsection [(7)] (6)(a) that exceed the cost of the basic school program shall be paid into the Uniform School Fund as provided by law and by the close of the fiscal year in which the proceeds were calculated.

[(8)] (7) Upon appropriation by the Legislature, the Division of Finance shall deposit an amount equal to the proceeds generated statewide

~~— (a) (1) by the basic levy increment rate into the Minimum Basic Growth Account created in Section 53F-9-302~~;

~~(b) by the equity pupil tax rate into the Local Levy Growth Account created in Section 53F-9-305~~; and

~~(c) by the WPU value rate into the Teacher and Student Success Account created in Section 53F-9-306.]~~

~~[(9) After July 1, 2021, but before November 30, 2022, the Public Education Appropriations Subcommittee:]~~

~~[(a) shall review the WPU value rate, the impact of revenues generated by the WPU value rate on public education funding, and whether local school boards should continue to levy the WPU value rate; and]~~

~~[(b) may recommend an increase, repeal, or continuance of the WPU value rate.]~~

Section 6. Section **53F-2-515** is amended to read:

53F-2-515. Federal Impact Aid Program -- Offset for underestimated allocations from the Federal Impact Aid Program.

(1) In addition to the revenues received from the levy imposed by a local school board and authorized by the Legislature under Section 53F-2-301 [or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable], the Legislature shall provide an amount equal to the difference between the school district's anticipated receipts under the entitlement for the fiscal year from the Federal Impact Aid Program and the amount the school district actually received from this source for the next preceding fiscal year.

(2) If at the end of a fiscal year the sum of the receipts of a school district from a distribution from the Legislature pursuant to Subsection (1) plus the school district's allocations from the Federal Impact Aid Program for that fiscal year exceeds the amount allocated to the

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

school district from the Federal Impact Aid Program for the next preceding fiscal year, the excess funds are carried into the next succeeding fiscal year and become in that year a part of the school district's contribution to the school district's basic program for operation and maintenance under the state minimum school finance law.

(3) During the next succeeding fiscal year described in Subsection (2), the school district's required tax rate for the basic program shall be reduced so that the yield from the reduced tax rate plus the carryover funds equal the school district's required contribution to the school district's basic program.

(4) For the school district of a local school board that is required to reduce the school district's basic tax rate under this section, the school district shall receive state minimum school program funds as though the reduction in the tax rate had not been made.

Section 7. Section **53F-9-302** is amended to read:

53F-9-302. Minimum Basic Growth Account.

(1) As used in this section, "account" means the Minimum Basic Growth Account created in this section.

(2) There is created within the Education Fund a restricted account known as the "Minimum Basic Growth Account."

(3) The account shall be funded by amounts deposited into the account in accordance with Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable~~].

(4) The account shall earn interest.

(5) Interest earned on the account shall be deposited into the account.

(6) Upon appropriation by the Legislature:

(a) 75% of the money from the account shall be used to fund the state's contribution to the voted local levy guarantee described in Section 53F-2-601;

(b) 20% of the money from the account shall be used to fund the Capital Outlay Foundation Program as provided in Section 53F-3-202; and

(c) 5% of the money from the account shall be used to fund the Capital Outlay Enrollment Growth Program as provided in Section 53F-3-203.

Section 8. Section **53F-9-305** is amended to read:

53F-9-305. Local Levy Growth Account.

(1) As used in this section, "account" means the Local Levy Growth Account created in

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

this section.

(2) There is created within the Education Fund a restricted account known as the "Local Levy Growth Account."

(3) The account shall be funded by:

(a) amounts deposited into the account in accordance with Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable~~]; and

(b) other legislative appropriations.

(4) The account shall earn interest.

(5) Interest earned on the account shall be deposited into the account.

(6) The Legislature shall appropriate money in the account to the state board.

Section 9. Section **53F-9-306** is amended to read:

53F-9-306. Teacher and Student Success Account.

(1) As used in this section, "account" means the Teacher and Student Success Account created in this section.

(2) There is created within the Education Fund a restricted account known as the "Teacher and Student Success Account."

(3) The account shall be funded by[: ~~(a) amounts deposited into the account in accordance with Section 53F-2-301 or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable; and (b) other~~] legislative appropriations.

(4) The account shall earn interest.

(5) Interest earned on the account shall be deposited into the account.

(6) The Legislature shall appropriate money in the account to the state board.

Section 10. Section **53G-3-304** is amended to read:

53G-3-304. Property tax levies in new district and remaining district --

Distribution of property tax revenue.

(1) Notwithstanding terms defined in Section 53G-3-102, as used in this section:

(a) "Divided school district" or "existing district" means a school district from which a new district is created.

(b) "New district" means a school district created under Section 53G-3-302 after May 10, 2011.

(c) "Property tax levy" means a property tax levy that a school district is authorized to

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

impose, except:

(i) the minimum basic tax rate imposed under Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable~~];

(ii) a debt service levy imposed under Section 11-14-310; or

(iii) a judgment levy imposed under Section 59-2-1330.

(d) "Qualifying taxable year" means the calendar year in which a new district begins to provide educational services.

(e) "Remaining district" means an existing district after the creation of a new district.

(2) A new district and remaining district shall continue to impose property tax levies that were imposed by the divided school district in the taxable year prior to the qualifying taxable year.

(3) Except as provided in Subsection (6), a property tax levy that a new district and remaining district are required to impose under Subsection (2) shall be set at a rate that:

(a) is uniform in the new district and remaining district; and

(b) generates the same amount of revenue that was generated by the property tax levy within the divided school district in the taxable year prior to the qualifying taxable year.

(4) The county treasurer of the county in which a property tax levy is imposed under Subsection (2) shall distribute revenues generated by the property tax levy to the new district and remaining district in proportion to the percentage of the divided school district's enrollment on the October 1 prior to the new district commencing educational services that were enrolled in schools currently located in the new district or remaining district.

(5) On or before March 31, a county treasurer shall distribute revenues generated by a property tax levy imposed under Subsection (2) in the prior calendar year to a new district and remaining district as provided in Subsection (4).

(6) (a) Subject to the notice and public hearing requirements of Section 59-2-919, a new district or remaining district may set a property tax rate higher than the rate required by Subsection (3), up to:

(i) the maximum rate, if any, allowed by law; or

(ii) the maximum rate authorized by voters for a voted local levy under Section 53F-8-301.

(b) The revenues generated by the portion of a property tax rate in excess of the rate

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

required by Subsection (3) shall be retained by the district that imposes the higher rate.

Section 11. Section **59-2-919.1** is amended to read:

59-2-919.1. Notice of property valuation and tax changes.

(1) In addition to the notice requirements of Section 59-2-919, the county auditor, on or before July 22 of each year, shall notify each owner of real estate who is listed on the assessment roll.

(2) The notice described in Subsection (1) shall:

(a) except as provided in Subsection (5), be sent to all owners of real property by mail 10 or more days before the day on which:

(i) the county board of equalization meets; and

(ii) the taxing entity holds a public hearing on the proposed increase in the certified tax rate;

(b) be on a form that is:

(i) approved by the commission; and

(ii) uniform in content in all counties in the state; and

(c) contain for each property:

(i) the assessor's determination of the value of the property;

(ii) the taxable value of the property;

(iii) (A) the deadline for the taxpayer to make an application to appeal the valuation or equalization of the property under Section 59-2-1004; or

(B) for property assessed by the commission, the deadline for the taxpayer to apply to the commission for a hearing on an objection to the valuation or equalization of the property under Section 59-2-1007;

(iv) for a property assessed by the commission, a statement that the taxpayer may not appeal the valuation or equalization of the property to the county board of equalization;

(v) itemized tax information for all applicable taxing entities, including:

(A) the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability for the property in the prior year;

and

(B) the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability under the current rate;

(vi) the following, stated separately:

(A) the charter school levy described in Section 53F-2-703;

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

(B) the multicounty assessing and collecting levy described in Subsection 59-2-1602(2);

(C) the county assessing and collecting levy described in Subsection 59-2-1602(4);

(D) for a fiscal year that begins before July 1, [~~2023~~] 2022, the combined basic rate as defined in Section 53F-2-301.5; and

(E) for a fiscal year that begins on or after July 1, [~~2023~~] 2022, the [~~combined~~] minimum basic tax rate as defined in Section 53F-2-301;

(vii) the tax impact on the property;

(viii) the time and place of the required public hearing for each entity;

(ix) property tax information pertaining to:

(A) taxpayer relief;

(B) options for payment of taxes;

(C) collection procedures; and

(D) the residential exemption described in Section 59-2-103;

(x) information specifically authorized to be included on the notice under this chapter;

(xi) the last property review date of the property as described in Subsection 59-2-303.1(1)(c); and

(xii) other property tax information approved by the commission.

(3) If a taxing entity that is subject to the notice and hearing requirements of Subsection 59-2-919(4) proposes a tax increase, the notice described in Subsection (1) shall state, in addition to the information required by Subsection (2):

(a) the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability if the proposed increase is approved;

(b) the difference between the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability if the proposed increase is approved and the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability under the current rate, placed in close proximity to the information described in Subsection (2)(c)(viii); and

(c) the percentage increase that the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability under the proposed tax rate represents as compared to the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability under the current tax rate.

(4) If a change to state law increases a tax rate stated on a notice described in Subsection (1), the notice described in Subsection (1) shall state in addition to the information

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

required by Subsections (2) and (3):

(a) the difference between the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability under the current tax rate and the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability before the change to state law became effective; and

(b) the percentage increase that the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability under the current tax rate represents as compared to the dollar amount of the taxpayer's tax liability under the tax rate before the change to state law becomes effective.

(5) (a) Subject to the other provisions of this Subsection (5), a county auditor may, at the county auditor's discretion, provide the notice required by this section to a taxpayer by electronic means if a taxpayer makes an election, according to procedures determined by the county auditor, to receive the notice by electronic means.

(b) (i) If a notice required by this section is sent by electronic means, a county auditor shall attempt to verify whether a taxpayer receives the notice.

(ii) If receipt of the notice sent by electronic means cannot be verified 14 days or more before the county board of equalization meets and the taxing entity holds a public hearing on a proposed increase in the certified tax rate, the notice required by this section shall also be sent by mail as provided in Subsection (2).

(c) A taxpayer may revoke an election to receive the notice required by this section by electronic means if the taxpayer provides written notice to the county auditor on or before April 30.

(d) An election or a revocation of an election under this Subsection (5):

(i) does not relieve a taxpayer of the duty to pay a tax due under this chapter on or before the due date for paying the tax; or

(ii) does not alter the requirement that a taxpayer appealing the valuation or the equalization of the taxpayer's real property submit the application for appeal within the time period provided in Subsection 59-2-1004(3).

(e) A county auditor shall provide the notice required by this section as provided in Subsection (2), until a taxpayer makes a new election in accordance with this Subsection (5), if:

(i) the taxpayer revokes an election in accordance with Subsection (5)(c) to receive the notice required by this section by electronic means; or

(ii) the county auditor finds that the taxpayer's electronic contact information is invalid.

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

(f) A person is considered to be a taxpayer for purposes of this Subsection (5) regardless of whether the property that is the subject of the notice required by this section is exempt from taxation.

Section 12. Section **59-2-926** is amended to read:

59-2-926. Proposed tax increase by state -- Notice -- Contents -- Dates.

If the state authorizes a tax rate that exceeds the [applicable] tax rate described in Section 53F-2-301 [~~or 53F-2-301.5~~], or authorizes a levy pursuant to Section 59-2-1602 that exceeds the certified revenue levy as defined in Section 59-2-102, the state shall publish a notice no later than 10 days after the last day of the annual legislative general session that meets the following requirements:

(1) (a) The Office of the Legislative Fiscal Analyst shall advertise that the state authorized a levy that generates revenue in excess of the previous year's ad valorem tax revenue, plus eligible new growth as defined in Section 59-2-924, but exclusive of revenue from collections from redemptions, interest, and penalties:

(i) in a newspaper of general circulation in the state; and

(ii) as required in Section 45-1-101.

(b) Except an advertisement published on a website, the advertisement described in Subsection (1)(a):

(i) shall be no less than 1/4 page in size and the type used shall be no smaller than 18 point, and surrounded by a 1/4-inch border;

(ii) may not be placed in that portion of the newspaper where legal notices and classified advertisements appear; and

(iii) shall be run once.

(2) The form and content of the notice shall be substantially as follows:

"NOTICE OF TAX INCREASE

The state has budgeted an increase in its property tax revenue from \$_____ to \$_____ or ____%. The increase in property tax revenues will come from the following sources (include all of the following provisions):

(a) \$_____ of the increase will come from (provide an explanation of the cause of adjustment or increased revenues, such as reappraisals or factoring orders);

(b) \$_____ of the increase will come from natural increases in the value of the

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

tax base due to (explain cause of eligible new growth, such as new building activity, annexation, etc.);

(c) a home valued at \$100,000 in the state of Utah which based on last year's (levy for the basic state-supported school program, applicable tax rate for the Property Tax Valuation Agency Fund, or both) paid \$ _____ in property taxes would pay the following:

(i) \$ _____ if the state of Utah did not budget an increase in property tax revenue exclusive of eligible new growth; and

(ii) \$ _____ under the increased property tax revenues exclusive of eligible new growth budgeted by the state of Utah."

Section 13. Section **63I-2-211** is amended to read:

63I-2-211. Repeal dates -- Title 11.

~~[(1) Subsections 11-13-302(2)(a)(i) and (2)(b)(i), the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(2) Section 11-13-310, the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable," is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(3)]~~ Title 11, Chapter 53, Residential Property Reimbursement, is repealed on January 1, 2020.

Section 14. Section **63I-2-253** is amended to read:

63I-2-253. Repeal dates -- Titles 53 through 53G.

(1) Section 53-1-106.1 is repealed January 1, 2022.

(2) (a) Section 53-2a-217, regarding procurement during an epidemic or pandemic emergency, is repealed on December 31, 2021.

(b) When repealing Section 53-2a-217, the Office of Legislative Research and General Counsel shall, in addition to the office's authority under Subsection 36-12-12(3), make necessary changes to subsection numbering and cross references.

(3) Section 53-2a-219, in relation to termination of emergency powers pertaining to COVID-19, is repealed on July 1, 2021.

(4) (a) Subsection 53B-2a-108(5), regarding exceptions to the composition of a technical college board of trustees, is repealed July 1, 2022.

(b) When repealing Subsection 53B-2a-108(5), the Office of Legislative Research and General Counsel shall, in addition to its authority under Subsection 36-12-12(3), make

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

necessary changes to subsection numbering and cross references.

(5) Section 53B-6-105.7 is repealed July 1, 2024.

(6) (a) Subsection 53B-7-705(6)(b)(iii)(A), the language that states "Except as provided in Subsection (6)(b)(iii)(B)," is repealed July 1, 2021.

(b) Subsection 53B-7-705(6)(b)(iii)(B), regarding comparing a technical college's change in performance with the technical college's average performance, is repealed July 1, 2021.

(7) (a) Subsection 53B-7-707(3)(a)(ii), the language that states "Except as provided in Subsection (3)(b)," is repealed July 1, 2021.

(b) Subsection 53B-7-707(3)(b), regarding performance data of a technical college during a fiscal year before fiscal year 2020, is repealed July 1, 2021.

(8) Section 53B-7-707 regarding performance metrics for technical colleges is repealed July 1, 2023.

(9) Section 53B-8-114 is repealed July 1, 2024.

(10) The following sections, regarding the Regents' scholarship program, are repealed on July 1, 2023:

(a) Section 53B-8-202;

(b) Section 53B-8-203;

(c) Section 53B-8-204; and

(d) Section 53B-8-205.

(11) Section 53B-10-101 is repealed on July 1, 2027.

(12) Title 53B, Chapter 18, Part 14, Uintah Basin Air Quality Research Project, is repealed July 1, 2023.

(13) Section 53E-1-202.2, regarding a Public Education Appropriations Subcommittee evaluation and recommendations, is repealed January 1, 2024.

(14) Section 53E-3-520 is repealed July 1, 2021.

(15) Subsection 53E-10-309(7), related to the PRIME pilot program, is repealed July 1, 2024.

~~[(16) In Subsections 53F-2-205(4) and (5), regarding the State Board of Education's duties if contributions from the minimum basic tax rate are overestimated or underestimated, the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

~~[(17)]~~ (16) Section 53F-2-209, regarding local education agency budgetary flexibility, is repealed July 1, 2024.

~~[(18)]~~ (17) Subsection 53F-2-301(1), relating to the years the section is not in effect, is repealed July 1, 2023.

~~[(19)]~~ (18) Section 53F-2-302.1, regarding the Enrollment Growth Contingency Program, is repealed July 1, 2023.

~~[(20)]~~ (19) Subsection 53F-2-314(4), relating to a one-time expenditure between the at-risk WPU add-on funding and previous at-risk funding, is repealed January 1, 2024.

~~[(21)]~~ (20) Section 53F-2-418, regarding the Supplemental Educator COVID-19 Stipend, is repealed January 1, 2022.

~~[(22) In Subsection 53F-2-515(1), the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(23)]~~ (21) Section 53F-4-207 is repealed July 1, 2022.

~~[(24)]~~ (22) Subsection 53F-4-401(3)(b), regarding a child enrolled or eligible for enrollment in kindergarten, is repealed July 1, 2022.

~~[(25)]~~ (23) In Subsection 53F-4-404(4)(c), the language that states "Except as provided in Subsection (4)(d)" is repealed July 1, 2022.

~~[(26)]~~ (24) Subsection 53F-4-404(4)(d) is repealed July 1, 2022.

~~[(27) In Subsection 53F-9-302(3), the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(28) In Subsection 53F-9-305(3)(a), the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(29) In Subsection 53F-9-306(3)(a), the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(30) In Subsection 53G-3-304(1)(c)(i), the language that states "or 53F-2-301.5, as applicable" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(31)]~~ (25) Subsections 53G-10-204(1)(c) through (e), and Subsection 53G-10-204(6), related to the civics engagement pilot program, are repealed on July 1, 2023.

~~[(32)]~~ (26) On July 1, 2023, when making changes in this section, the Office of Legislative Research and General Counsel shall, in addition to the office's authority under Subsection 36-12-12(3), make corrections necessary to ensure that sections and subsections

HB0478S01 compared with HB0478

identified in this section are complete sentences and accurately reflect the office's perception of the Legislature's intent.

Section 15. Section **63I-2-259** is amended to read:

63I-2-259. Repeal dates -- Title 59.

~~[(1) In Section 59-2-926, the language that states "applicable" and "or 53F-2-301.5" is repealed July 1, 2023.]~~

~~[(2) (1) Subsection 59-7-106(1)(w) is repealed December 31, 2021.~~

~~[(3) (2) Section 59-7-620 is repealed December 31, 2021.~~

~~[(4) (3) Subsection 59-10-114(2)(j) is repealed December 31, 2021.~~

Section 16. **Repealer.**

This bill repeals:

Section **53F-2-301.5, Minimum basic tax rate for a fiscal year that begins on July 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, or 2022.**

Section 17. **Retrospective operation.**

This bill has retrospective operation ~~{for a taxable year beginning on or after}~~ to January 1, 2022.